AGENDA SPECIAL MEETING ANTIOCH CITY COUNCIL
CANNABIS STANDING COMMITTEE
COUNCIL MEMBERS WILSON AND THORPE
WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 25, 2020

10:30 A.M.

Special Meeting November 25, 2020
10:30 P.™m. Meeting Conducted Remotely

The City of Antioch, in response to the Executive Order of the Governor and the Order of
the Health Officer of Contra Costa County concerning the Novel Coronavirus Disease
(COVID-19), held the Cannabis Standing Committee meeting live stream (at
www.antiochca.gov/csc/meeting/). The Cannabis Standing Committee meeting was
conducted utilizing Zoom Audio/Video Technology.

1. ROLL CALL

Council/Committee Chair Wilson called the meeting to order at 10:43 A.m. Minutes Clerk Eiden
called the roll.

Present: Council/Committee Member Thorpe and Council/Committee Chair Wilson
Staff: City Attorney, Thomas Lloyd Smith
Outside Legal Counsel, Ruthann Ziegler
Youth Services Network Manager, Tasha Johnson
Director of Economic Development, Kwame Reed
Minutes Clerk, Kitty Eiden
PLEDGE OF ALLEGENCE
2. INTRODUCTIONS
City Attorney Smith gave introductory comments and discussed parliamentary procedures.

3. PUBLIC COMMENT ON UNAGENDIZED ITEMS — None

4. APPROVAL OF CANNABIS STANDING COMMITTEE SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES
FOR AUGUST 10, 2020.

On motion by Council/Committee Chair Wilson, seconded by Council/Committee Member
Thorpe the Cannabis Standing Committee unanimously approved the minutes for August 10,
2020.

5. APPROVAL OF CANNABIS STANDING COMMITTEE SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES
FOR SEPTEMBER 4, 2020



http://www.antiochca.gov/

CANNABIS COMMITTEE
Special Meeting
November 25, 2020 Page 2 of 7

On motion by Council/Committee Chair Wilson, seconded by Council/Committee Member
Thorpe the Cannabis Standing Committee unanimously approved the minutes for September 4,
2020.

6. COCO FARMS OPERATING AGREEMENT AND SOCIAL EQUITY PROGRAM

City Attorney Smith reported that he had met with Chuck Wesley representing COCO Farms
and Beat the Streets regarding their Social Equity Program annual progress report. He stated
the initial report was not satisfactory in terms of demonstrating progress against goals, so a
request was made that they come back with a detailed report. He noted they provided the
additional information; however, prior to receiving that report, Mr. Wesley contemplated moving
his support to another non-profit organization. He explained that Mr. Wesley was open to Youth
Services Network Manager Johnson working with Beat the Streets to develop more measurable
outcomes and quarterly impact reports.

A. Public Comment

Mr. Wesley clarified that the goal was to develop measurable impacts. He noted that initially
Beat The Streets had provided no information; however, they returned with throughput statistics
and outcomes. He explained that what was in question was how many of the outcomes were a
result of their contribution. He reported that the outcomes provided were adequate to continue
for a few more months with closer monitoring. He noted that he wanted to make sure their
contribution was making a sufficient impact.

Youth Services Network Manager Johnson added that it would be important to identify goals
with projected outcomes and pre-determined benchmarks. She noted the program should report
on the number of participants recruited and served as well as the hours of engagement and the
resource connectivity provided. She further noted the percentage of funding breakdown should
also be provided along with the narrative of those served. In addition, they could propose a
percentage gap on staffing and program overhead so funds could be identified specifically for
programming.

City Attorney Smith asked for the Committees feedback and stated if COCO Farms continued
with Beat the Streets, once the metrics were developed, they could bring Beat the Streets back
to have a discussion on expectations.

Alissa Friedman discussed the value of staff working directly with the youth.

A. Discussion and provide direction to staff

Council/Committee Member Thorpe commented that 90% of programs were related to staff who

provided a service. He noted that funders wanted to fund specific outcomes but that was not
absent of someone providing a service.



CANNABIS COMMITTEE
Special Meeting
November 25, 2020 Page 3 of 7

Council/Committee Chair Wilson spoke in support of staff agendizing the establishment of
specific guidelines and expectations to assist Cannabis organizations that were working with
non-profits.

In response to City Attorney Smith, Council/Committee Chair Wilson and Council/Committee
Member Thorpe directed staff and Mr. Wesley to move forward with establishing guidelines and
outcomes with Beat the Streets.

Mr. Westley stated he was willing to move forward with oversight from Youth Services Network
Manager Johnson. He reported that currently they were funding rent as well as the program
director and an assistant position.

City Attorney Smith stated that he had been working on the matrix with Youth Services Network
Manager Johnson and they would get Beat the Streets and Mr. Wesley involved to make sure
he was satisfied. He reported once the matrix was developed, it would be brought back to the
Committee along with the Beat the Streets organization.

7. BAKERY INC. (COOKIES) OPERATING AGREEMENT AND SOCIAL EQUITY
PROGRAM

City Attorney Smith reported that they believed Bakery Inc, sponsoring Opportunity Junction was
a good fit in terms of the programming. He noted that they would be developing measurable
objectives and impact per dollars spent. He announced Legal Counsel Ziegler would be working
with the parties involved on the details of the program.

A. Public Comment

Jesse Feldman representing Cookies thanked everyone for hearing their item. He noted it was
an exciting process and he enjoyed working with Youth Services Network Manager Johnson to
locate a suitable organization. He further noted they had engaged in conversations with
Opportunity Junction and their goal was to work with a partner that met the programmatic goals
of the Social Equity program as well as the desires of the City.

Alissa Friedman representing Opportunity Junction gave a history of their non-profit and reported
their organization was rated in the top 10 globally of poverty fighting organizations, by Impact
Matters. She announced the most recent program added was a Certified Nursing Assistants
training program in Concord and they wanted to expand the healthcare career pathway to
Antioch. She noted that they were excited to discuss the Social Equity program being a funding
source. She further noted the War on Drugs had affected people of color and their job training
programs served many people involved. She added that bringing the program to an area
surrounded by relatively low-income families positioned them well to serve communities that
would benefit greatly from the program expansion.

B. Discussion and provide direction to staff



CANNABIS COMMITTEE
Special Meeting
November 25, 2020 Page 4 of 7

Youth Services Network Manager Johnson stated it was important residents of Antioch benefited
from this funding, so they would be mindful of how that was represented in the measurables and
outcomes.

Alissa Friedman added that the contribution from Cookies would be approximately 25% of the
budget for the expansion of the program into Antioch. She stated they projected annual
enroliment of forty-five (45) participants, which would be made up of three (3) cohorts of fifteen
(15), eight (8) in each cohort would be Antioch residents. She noted there was a lot of interest
from Antioch residents who wanted to start healthcare careers and it was especially interesting
to young people.

Youth Services Network Manager Johnson offered her support to connect Ms. Friedman to
Antioch residents and resources.

Alissa Friedman responded that she would appreciate working with Youth Services Network
Manager Johnson’s on those efforts.

Council/Committee Chair Wilson stated she was feeling very positive and commended Ms.
Friedman on her outreach efforts.

Councilmember Thorpe spoke in support of the Social Equity Program.
City Attorney Smith stated that they were attempting to schedule consideration of the Operating
Agreement and Use Permit for Bakery Inc. (Cookies), for the December 8, 2020 City Council

meeting.

C. LEMONNADE (ALLUVIUM) OPERATING AGREEMENT AND SOCIAL EQUITY
PROGRAM

City Attorney Smith stated this item was the same as the previous item as they were proposing
a dual sponsorship with Opportunity Junction.

Legal Counsel Ziegler reported it had been a positive working relationship with Alluvium, Cookies
and their in-house legal counsel, and they were nearing completion in terms of the Operating
Agreement.

A. Public Comment

None

B. Discussion and provide direction to staff

None

D. UPDATE ON NEW CANNABIS BUSINESS APPLICANTS



CANNABIS COMMITTEE
Special Meeting
November 25, 2020 Page 5 of 7

City Attorney Smith reported Culture Club just went through the Planning Commission and it was
a smaller dispensary located near Costco. He noted the committee would be seeing that item
in early 2021.

Legal Counsel Ziegler provided the following updates:

Alluvium/Cookies

Alluvium/Cookies is on track and hope to open in late first quarter or early second quarter 2021.

Delta Dispensary

Delta Dispensary has a new application for cultivation as a separate Use Permit which is
currently at the planning department. The business will be located at a separate address next-
door.

One Plant

One Plant’s Social Equity Program with Beat the Streets and Operating Agreement will be
changed to require quarterly check in for the first year and semi-annually thereafter.

Natural Supplements

Natural Supplements is in the application in process with planning department and their Attorney
had a draft of their Operating Agreement.

Culture Club (High Horizons)

Culture Club’s Use Permits was approved by the Planning Commission and they were aware of
the Operating Agreement.

City Attorney Smith added that this project should go to the City Council in early 2021.

Radix Growth

Radix Growth’s proposal at the former K-Mart site was for store front retail, manufacturing using
nonvolatile chemicals, distribution for their own and other cannabis businesses as well as
cultivation and a nursery. Indoor cultivation was estimated to be 2.2 acres.

Councilmember Thorpe reported he had visited a similar project in Oakland, and they were
familiar with this type of project and it was good news for Antioch.

Director of Economic Development Reed added that he had visited grow builders specializing in
cannabis operations who were occupying approximately 5000 sq. ft. of building space in an old
cannery. He reported that they were doing four floors of cultivation and manufacturing edibles.



CANNABIS COMMITTEE
Special Meeting
November 25, 2020 Page 6 of 7

Council/Committee Chair Wilson added that there were also micro businesses involved.

Council/Committee Member Thorpe stated that this would provide the opportunity for those
impacted by the war on drugs, to become involved in the cannabis industry.

Legal Counsel Ziegler reported that this business was proposing to hire 100 employees and
under state law greater than 50 employees required a PLA and there was also an incentive to
hire Antioch residents. She noted that because they were seeking three different licenses, the
Bureau of Cannabis Control, Department of Food and Agriculture, Department of Public Health,
would be involved. She stated that she believed it would be a sophisticated operation and
presented an exciting opportunity for the City.

Other Discussion

Council/Committee Chair Wilson and Council/Committee Member Thorpe agreed that the City
was at a point where they needed to consider limiting store front cannabis businesses to
preserve existing businesses.

Legal Counsel Ziegler reported some jurisdictions limited storefront businesses; however, the
City may want to consider linking storefronts with other uses.

Council/Committee Chair Wilson stated she would support additional storefronts if most of the
business was an additional use.

City Attorney Smith stated he would work with Legal Counsel Ziegler to bring an item back to
the Committee that addresses this issue.

Director of Economic Development Reed stated he was excited for the possibility of expanding
green zones which may address the issue of oversaturation in some portions of Antioch. He
also stated he was supportive of tying storefronts to multifaceted businesses. He reported that
there were cannabis businesses interested in the Somersville and Slatten Ranch areas.

Legal Counsel Ziegler added that it may be feasible to bring in a testing lab as a standalone use.

Director of Economic Development Reed stated he had had discussions with existing cannabis
businesses with regards to making connections to testing lab businesses.

Council/Committee Member Thorpe directed staff bring a policy related to store front applications
to Council, as soon as possible.

City Attorney Smith stated he would work with Legal Counsel Ziegler and if it could be brought
to the Committee without slowing down the City Council approach they would do so; however, if
it slowed the process he would inform the Committee that it would be going directly to Council.

10 MOTION TO ADJOURN



CANNABIS COMMITTEE
Special Meeting
November 25, 2020 Page 7 of 7

On motion by Council/Committee Member Thorpe, seconded by Council/Committee Chair
Wilson the Committee adjourned the meeting a 11:38 p.m.

Respectfully submitted:
Kitty Eiden

KITTY EIDEN, Minutes Clerk




